
LAMCC Regular Meeting – Thursday, June 21, 2018 Page 1 of 3    
 

 AGENDA  
FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF 

THE LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
 

Thursday, June 21, 2018 at 2:30 pm 
 

Exposition Park Constituent Service Center 
900 Exposition Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 90037 

 
In compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5, nonexempt writings that are distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the Coliseum Commission members 
by any person in connection with a matter subject to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the Coliseum Commission, are disclosable public records 
under the California Public Records Act. These public records may be viewed at 3911 S. Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037, at the web page 
http://lamcc.lacounty.gov/Meetings or at the scheduled meeting. In addition, if you would like a copy of any record related to an item on the agenda, please 
contact Ms. Elida Flores, eflores@bos.lacounty.gov, (213) 893-0202. 
 

(POSTED: Monday, June 18, 2018 at 2:30 p.m.) 

 
MEMBERS: 
 
City of Los Angeles    Mr. Curren D. Price, Jr., President 
      Mr. Solomon Rivera 
      Mr. Marqueece Harris-Dawson, Alternate 
 
State of California    Ms. Mona Pasquil Rogers 
      Ms. Laphonza Butler 
      Mr. Mark E. Pulido, Alternate 
 
County of Los Angeles    Ms. Janice Hahn, Vice President 

Mr. Mark Ridley-Thomas 
      Ms. Anita DeFrantz, Alternate 
 
State Senate     Mr. Ricardo Lara1 
 
State Assembly     Mr. Reginald B. Jones-Sawyer, Sr. 2  
 
STAFF: 
 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer & Secretary Mr. Al Naipo 
Treasurer     Mr. Joseph Kelly 
Controller     Mr. John Naimo 
Co-Counsel     Ms. Noreen Vincent 
Co-Counsel     Ms. Teresa Lujan 
Co-Counsel     Ms. Sonia L. Chan 
 
At the discretion of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission (“Commission”), all items appearing in 
this Agenda, whether or not expressly listed for action, may be deliberated and may be subject to action by 
the Commission. 
 

 

 
                                                           
1 Ex-officio (non-voting) 



LAMCC Regular Meeting – Thursday, June 21, 2018 Page 2 of 3    
 

OPEN SESSION 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS 

4. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF MAY 24, 2018 

6. INTERIM CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S REPORT (Receive and file) 

7. COLISEUM COMMISSION FINANCIAL REPORT (Receive and file) 

8. LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM RECOMMENDED BUDGET FY 2018-2019 
(Discussion and possible action) 

9. SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED MOU WITH LA COUNTY EXECUTIVE OFFICE 
(Discussion and possible action) 

10. LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Receive and file) 

A. Event operations 
B. Coliseum planned and in-progress projects 

11. LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM STADIUM SEAT PROMOTION 
(Discussion and possible action) 
 

12. UPDATE ON EXPOSITION PARK CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (Receive and file) 

13. UPDATE ON LOS ANGELES FOOTBALL CLUB PROJECT (Receive and file) 

14. CONSIDERATION FOR CREATING A LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM FOUNDATION 
(Discussion and possible action) 

15. AD HOC LEASE REVIEW COMMITTEE REPORT 
(Discussion and possible action) 

CLOSED SESSION 

CS-1  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT         
(CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957) 

          Title: Chief Administrative Officer 

OPEN SESSION 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Next regular meeting: August 23, 2018   
                                   Coliseum Commission Hearing Room 



LAMCC Regular Meeting – Thursday, June 21, 2018 Page 3 of 3    
 

 

NOTICE: All meetings of the Coliseum Commission are open to the public. A member of the public may 
address the Commission on any Agenda item, and a request to address the Commission must be 
submitted in person prior to the start of the meeting. The Commission may limit the public input on any 
item, based on the number of people requesting to speak and the business of the Commission. In addition, 
a member of the public has the right to address the Commission on items of interest which is within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission during the Public Comment portion of the Agenda. 

 
As a covered entity under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum 
Commission does not discriminate on the basis of disability and upon request, will provide reasonable 
accommodation to ensure equal access to its programs, services and activities. Sign language interpreters, 
assistive listening devices, or other auxiliary aids and/or services may be provided upon request. To ensure 
availability of services, please make your request at least three (3) business days prior to the meeting you 
wish to attend by contacting Ms. Elida Flores at (213) 893-0202. 
 
Persons having matters before the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission should read the following 
notice in connection with prohibited contributions to members of this agency. 
 

NOTICE TO PERSONS HAVING MATTERS BEFORE THIS 
AGENCY REGARDING PROHIBITED CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
Any person to a proceeding before this Commission involving a license, permit, or other entitlement 
(including all entitlements for land use, contracts -- other than competitively bid labor or personal 
employment contracts -- and all franchises) must disclose on the record any contributions in excess of 
$250.00 to any elected or appointed officer of the Commission, including alternates, made within the 
preceding 12 months by the party, or his or her agent. The California contributions limitations of 
Government Code Section 84308 also prohibit contributions in excess of $250.00 for three months 
following the date of any final decision rendered by the Commission in such proceeding. Commissioners 
who have received such contributions within the past 12 months may not participate in the proceeding. 
Also, Commissioners may not receive such contributions while a matter affecting a contributor is pending. 
 
Si requiere servicios de traduccion, favor de notificar a la oficina 3 dias de trabajo (72 horas) antes del 
evento. Si necesita ayuda con esta agenda, por favor llame a nuestra oficina al (213) 893-0202. 



  
Minutes of LAMCC Regular Meeting – Thursday, May 24, 2018   Page 1 of  3 

 
 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 

 
Thursday, May 24, 2018 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
The regular meeting of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
(the “Commission”) was held in the California African American Museum 
Conference Center on Thursday, May 24, 2018, and was called to order at 
2:41 p.m. by President PRICE. 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Mr. Curren D. Price, Jr., President 
 Ms. Janice Hahn, Vice President 
 Mr. Mark Ridley-Thomas  (2:54 p.m.) 

 Ms. Mona Pasquil Rogers 
 Ms. Anita DeFrantz (Alternate) 
 

 Four (4) and a quorum 
  

           ABSENT: Mr. Solomon Rivera 
Ms. Laphonza Butler 
Mr. Mark E. Pulido (Alternate) 
Mr. Marqueece Harris-Dawson (Alternate) 

 Mr. Reginald B. Jones-Sawyer, Sr. (Non-voting) 
 Mr. Ricardo Lara (Non-voting) 
  

   
    

STAFF PRESENT: Mr.  Al Naipo, Secretary and Interim CAO 
Ms. Teresa Lujan, Co-Counsel 
Ms. Sonia Chan, Co-Counsel 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Mr. Mark Baucum 
 Ms. Claudia Gutierrez
 Ms. Jacquelyn Horton     
 Mr. Thomas Sayles 
 Ms. Rachel Lamb 

    Mr. Tom LaBonge 
    Ms. Theodora Oyie 

Mr. David Galaviz   
Mr. Matt Johnson 
Mr. Matt Curran              
Ms. Anjeanette Arakawa 
Ms. Celia Zavala              
Mr. Thomas J. Faughnan 



Minutes of LAMCC Regular Meeting – Thursday, May 24, 2018   Page 2 of  3 
 

 
3. President PRICE was pleased to be joined by Alternate DEFRANTZ, 

Commissioner PASQUIL ROGERS and Vice President HAHN. President 
PRICE expressed his gratitude to be at the California African American 
Museum (CAAM), led by Mr. George Davis, Executive Director of CAAM. 
President PRICE invited Mr. Davis to address the Commission. 
 
Mr. Davis welcomed everyone, and invited participants to visit the gospel 
exhibit after the meeting. Mr. Davis thanked President PRICE for his support, 
and mentioned that years ago, he had a chance to meet with Supervisor 
HAHN at Verbum Dei High School. 
 
President PRICE concluded his comments by thanking Mr. Davis, for 
permitting the Coliseum Commission to hold its regular meeting at CAAM 
and for its unique role at Exposition Park and throughout the world.  
 

4. There was no public comment.   
 

5. APPROVED a motion from Vice President HAHN, seconded by 
Commissioner PASQUIL ROGERS, to accept the Minutes of the 
Commission’s Regular Meeting on April 26, 2018. 

 
Ayes:          PRICE, HAHN, DEFRANTZ, PASQUIL ROGERS 
 

5. RECEIVED and FILED by unanimous consent, there being no objection, the 
report of the Interim Chief Administrative Officer. 
 

6. RECEIVED AND FILED by unanimous consent, there being no objection, 
University of Southern California’s (USC) Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum 
General Manager’s Report. 
 

8. Update on Los Angeles Football Club Project was continued to the next 
meeting due to illness of LAFC Sr. VP Benny Tran. 

 
9.  Vice President HAHN reported the Ad Hoc Lease Review Committee met for 

the first time on May 21, 2018. Vice President HAHN thanked Commission 
Counsel and Staff for providing her with helpful background on the Lease, 
commenting it was enlightening for her to understand the history of that 
Lease. Vice President HAHN indicated there may be opportunities for the 
Commission and USC to address parts of the lease that are areas of 
concern to the Committee. In particular, Vice President HAHN identified the 
naming rights of the Coliseum as being one of her top concerns. She would 
like to see if there is a way to find common ground with USC and United 
Airlines to keep “Los Angeles,” as a part of the name of the Los Angeles 
Memorial Coliseum. Vice President HAHN mentioned there were other areas 
of concern identified by the Committee and that it looks forward to a further 
examination of the Lease.  

 



  
Minutes of LAMCC Regular Meeting – Thursday, May 24, 2018   Page 3 of 3 

 
 

 
The Commission entered closed session at 3:05 p.m. 

 
CS-1  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT  
             (CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957) 
 

        Title: Chief Administrative Officer 
 
        No reportable action was taken. 
 

The Commission entered open session at 3:12 p.m. 
 

 
10. ADJOURNED at 3:13 p.m. 

 
 

****************** 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Secretary 



 

 

  

  

    

 

  

                LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
                        3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA  90037 

 
 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Regular Meeting 6/21/18  Page 1 of 2 
 

COMMISSION STAFF 
AL NAIPO 
INTERIM 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
SECRETARY 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 
STATE SENATOR 
RICARDO LARA 

ASSEMBLYMEMBER 
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

CURREN D. PRICE, JR. 
PRESIDENT 

 

SOLOMON RIVERA 
 

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON 
(Alternate) 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
MONA PASQUIL ROGERS 

 

LAPHONZA BUTLER 
 

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate) 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
JANICE HAHN 

 VICE PRESIDENT 
 

MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS 
 

ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate) 
 

 

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984 
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES 

 

AGENDA ITEM #6 
 

INTERIM CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 

AL NAIPO 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: RECEIVE and FILE the interim Chief administrative officer’s report. 
 
 

A. Hearing Room and Commission Offices Renovation 
 

Work continues to renovate the Hearing Room. The Commission’s new administrative 
offices to the west side of the lobby have been painted and are awaiting furniture. 
Temporary staff offices are currently in a trailer near Gate 29 at the Coliseum. USC 
indicates the administrative offices should be ready by early June. USC may share more 
details in its report at this meeting. 

 
B. Public Interest Event – Memorial Day Ceremony 

 
The Commission hosted a Memorial Day Ceremony on Monday, May 28th at noon on the 
Coliseum’s Peristyle Plaza as a public interest event. Commission President Price provided 
welcoming remarks with the program featuring World War I reenactors, a keynote address 
from Lt. Col. Gil Roldan from the US Army National Guard and a ceremonial wreath laying. 
(see Attachment 6.1). About 100 people attended the 45-minute event. Our thanks to the 
California World War I Task Force and USC for their assistance. 

 
C. Public Interest Event – Veterans Day Ceremony 

 
As previously mentioned at the last meeting Commission meeting, planning is underway for 
the Commission to host an Armistice/Veterans Day program at the Coliseum marking the 
centennial of the end of the Great War. Given the date lands on the same day as a Rams 
game at the Coliseum, staff is reaching out to them and the NFL to determine if a pre-game 
or half-time ceremony might be permissible. Staff will seek to confirm plans by our August 
meeting. 



 
 

 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Regular Meeting 6/21/18  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
D. Public Interest Event – July 4th Celebration 

 
A reminder of the next public interest event at the Coliseum, the annual July 4th Celebration 
sponsored by the 9th Council District in the City of Los Angeles under Councilman and 
Commission President Price. The event is free and open to the public for an evening of fun, 
food and fireworks.  
 

E. Coliseum Naming Rights 
 
In January, USC announced plans per its lease agreement with the Commission, to rename 
the Coliseum as “United Airlines Memorial Coliseum,” following an agreement with United 
Airlines for a 16-year, $69 million naming rights deal. I met with a representative from USC 
last week to inquire about designs and sign placement. 
 
I was told they are still researching various options in and around the Coliseum and that 
they intend to confer and keep the Commission informed on the status of the name and 
signage. In addition, USC is also speaking with other stakeholders and is fully aware of the 
Commission’s concerns.  
 
At this point, no decision has been made regarding signage and no deadline has been 
established for any action other than for the new name to be in place and to take effect in 
August 2019. Staff will remain in close contact with USC on this matter and continue to 
provide the Commission with updates. 



 

 

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text
Attachment 6.1



 

 

  

  

    

 

  

                LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
                        3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA  90037 

 
 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Regular Meeting 6/21/18  
 

COMMISSION STAFF 
AL NAIPO 
INTERIM 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
SECRETARY 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 
STATE SENATOR 
RICARDO LARA 

ASSEMBLYMEMBER 
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

CURREN D. PRICE, JR. 
PRESIDENT 

 

SOLOMON RIVERA 
 

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON 
(Alternate) 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
MONA PASQUIL ROGERS 

 

LAPHONZA BUTLER 
 

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate) 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
JANICE HAHN 

 VICE PRESIDENT 
 

MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS 
 

ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate) 
 

 

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984 
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES 

 

AGENDA ITEM  #7 
 

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

RACHELLE ANEMA 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: Receive and file 
 
Rachelle Anema from the Los Angeles County Auditor-Controller’s office will provide a report (see 
Attachment 7.1) to the Commission addressing Commission finances pertaining to the budget 
along with a cash flow forecast. 
 
 



Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission
Fiscal Year 2017-2018
Estimated Actual Operating Costs vs Cost Reimbursement 

Estimated Projected 
FY FY

2017-2018 2018-2019
Operating Costs

Administrative Support (CAO and Staff) 285,000$    323,000$   
Accounting Services (Auditor-Controller) 34,000        38,000       
Audit and Tax Preparation 17,720        20,000       
Miscellaneous 3,000          3,300         

339,720      384,300     

Reimbursement Provided by USC
Operating Cost Reimbursement (1) 344,848$    364,826$   

Over/(Under) Reimbursement 5,128$        (19,474)$    

1 Budgeted at $356,689. However, the 2016-2017 costs were lower 
than the reimbursement resulting in a credit to USC.

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text
Attachment 07.1



 

 

  

  

    

 

  

                LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
                        3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA  90037 

 
 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Regular Meeting 6/21/18  
 

COMMISSION STAFF 
AL NAIPO 
INTERIM 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
SECRETARY 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 
STATE SENATOR 
RICARDO LARA 

ASSEMBLYMEMBER 
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

CURREN D. PRICE, JR. 
PRESIDENT 

 

SOLOMON RIVERA 
 

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON 
(Alternate) 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
MONA PASQUIL ROGERS 

 

LAPHONZA BUTLER 
 

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate) 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
JANICE HAHN 

 VICE PRESIDENT 
 

MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS 
 

ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate) 
 

 

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984 
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES 

 

AGENDA ITEM #8 
 

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM RECOMMENDED BUDGET 2018-19 
 

AL NAIPO 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: Discussion and possible action 
 
Overview:  
 
The Commission is set to approve a budget for the next fiscal year, 2018-2019 at its June 21, 2018 
regular meeting to provide for expenditures as of July 1, 2018. Staff is presenting a recommended 
budget (see Attachment 8.1). 
 
Staff recommends that the Commission approve the recommended budget for fiscal year 2018-19. 



2017-18        
Final Adopted 

Budget

2018-19 
Recommended

Change
% 

Change

Revenue:

Operating 356,689              367,390              10,701          3%

Restitution -                      333,000              333,000        100%

Retiree health insurance premiums 168,800              173,900              5,100            3%

Interest 3,732                  5,000                  1,268            34%

Total revenue 529,221              879,290              350,069        66%

Expenditures:

Administrative support services 296,050              323,000              26,950          9%

Retired health insurance premiums 168,800              173,900              5,100            3%

Employee pension 105,270              151,949              46,679          44%

IATSE 82,272                65,953                (16,319)        -20%

Accounting services 40,000                38,000                (2,000)          -5%

Legal 60,000                133,200              73,200          122%

Audit and tax 17,402                20,000                2,598            15%

Miscellaneous 3,237                  3,500                  263               8%

Total expenditures 773,031              909,502              136,471        18%

Surplus (Deficit) (243,810)$           (30,212)$             213,598$      -88%

Budgeted positions 2                         2                         -               0%

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION

Recommended Budget

Fiscal Year 2018-19

Line Item

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text
Attachment 08.1



 

 

  

  

    

 

  

                LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
                        3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA  90037 

 
 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Regular Meeting 6/21/18  
 

COMMISSION STAFF 
AL NAIPO 
INTERIM 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
SECRETARY 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 
STATE SENATOR 
RICARDO LARA 

ASSEMBLYMEMBER 
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

CURREN D. PRICE, JR. 
PRESIDENT 

 

SOLOMON RIVERA 
 

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON 
(Alternate) 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
MONA PASQUIL ROGERS 

 

LAPHONZA BUTLER 
 

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate) 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
JANICE HAHN 

 VICE PRESIDENT 
 

MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS 
 

ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate) 
 

 

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984 
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES 

 

AGENDA ITEM #9 
 

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED MOU - COUNTY EXECUTIVE OFFICE 
 

AL NAIPO 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: Discussion and possible action 
 
Overview:  
 
Before the Commission is a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between the Commission and 
the Executive Office of the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors seeking to increase the 
annual amount for administrative and support services provided to the Commission by the 
Executive Office (see Attachment 9.1). 
 
Staff recommends that the Commission approve the Second Amended and Restated MOU. 



SECOND AiUIENDED AND RESTATED INTERAGENCY IUIEM~RANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING REGARDING ADMIN[STRATIVE AND SUPPORTIVE SERVICES
BETWEEN THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY EXECUTIVE OFFICE —BOARD ~F
SUPERVISORS (HEREAFTER "EO"} AND THE LDS ANGELES MEMORIAL

COLISEUM CQIV~MISSI~N THEREAFTER "CQMMISSICJN"~

1. Purpose
The purpose of this Second Amended and Restated [nteragency Memorandum of
Understanding (MaU} is to Testa#e the obligations of the Commission and the ED and to
increase the ~st~mated annual amount for administrative support services thafi became
effective June 1, 20'[ 5.

I1, Services
The EO wifl pra~ide ongoing administrative support services to the Commission using
finro full-time stafF. The sfiaff will be responsible for oversight ~f all budget and fiscal
activities, human resource management, payment approval, procurement functions,
organizing/administering meetings, preparing minutes, r~c~rd keeping, and other
administrative and ❑peratianal duties, and main#aining effective relationships wEth
elected officials, high Ieve~ management, the public, and other organized groups.

III. Billing, Payment and Labor Rates
The Ea shalt bil! the Commission a~ current hourly billing rates, and acfival services and
supplies cost. Invoices will be submitted no later than 45 days from the end of the
quarter in which services were prodded. The in~aices shall be sent to the Commission
for approval and paymenfi:

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission
5Q~ ~lllest Tempe Street, Room 383
Las Angeles, CA 9001 ~

The Commission shall pay invoices within 30 days of receipt, except when the
Commission provides written notice of any disputed amounts in the same timeframe.
Payments, billing questions, and inquiries should be directed fio:

Executive Office -- Board of Supervisors
Fiscal Services Division
500 Vilest Temple Street, Raom 383
Los Angeles, CA 90~~2
Attention: Nanetfie Herrera
(2 ~ 3) 974~9?'OD
naherrera ~a?bos.[acounty.goW

Eflores
Typewritten Text
Attachment 09.1



The EO staff will record all time expended on this project, in quarter-hour increments,
pursuant to the County's standard timekeeping and project job coshing procedures.
Labor hours will be billed at the EQ's approved rates listed below. Below is the
standard hourly labor rate for the ~rvo full-time staff providing support to this project:

POSITION TITLE HOURLY B[LLING RATE

Deputy Executive Officer $ 108.15
Senior Board Specialist $ 52.2

The E~ anticipates total billings of approximately $323,000 for the period of July 1,
201$ through June 30, 20~ 9. The esf~mates include the costs for both Salaries and
Employee Bene~i~s {S&EB} and Services and Supplies (S&S). The S&S es#imate
includes anticipated costs associated with vehicle/transportation services. The EO will
notify the Commission and request approval before incurring costs in excess of this
estimate.

Thc: EQ may adjust the S&EB and S&S rates for any subsequent fiscal year (July 7
#hrough June 30) by written nofiificafiion to the Commission on or before April 7 of the
prior fiscal year.

IV. ModifiEcationslChanges
This Second Amended and Restated M4U may be modified by mu~ua[ consent of ba#h
parties. Such modificafiions shall be in writing.

V. Effecfiirre Date and Term
This Second Amended and Restaffed MOU is effec~i~e from June 1, 2p'[ 8 fihrough June
30, 2419. Thereafter, fihis Second Amended and Restated MQU will continue from
fiscal year to fiscal year, unless terminated for convenience by either party by giving the
other party thirty X30} days written nofiice.

Terms and Conditions

Under this Second Amended and Restated M4U, the Ea agrees fo continue providing
the Coliseum with the services authorized by the Board on October 8, 2x13, and
requested by the Commission on September 11, 2D'[ 3.

The Commission agrees to reimburse the ED for the cosh of these services, as billed,
and to resolve any billing disputes using the County's esfiab[ished dispute resolution
process. In the event that a dispute is not #hereby resolved ~o the satisfaction of either
party to this Second Amended and Restated MOU, the matter shall be referred to the
Board off Supenrisars, in the capacity as the final authority of the County of Los Angeles.

AGREED, Effective as June 1, 20'f 8:



IN t!1/ITf~E~ 11"tIH~REt~F, the County of Lr~s Angeles, b~ order ~f its Beard c~~
~~penri~vrs, has caused phis S~~and ,Am~~d~d end Restaffed l~C~U f~ ~e ~xecut~d an
its b~ha~f by the ~x~cc~tive 4~~'ic~r-clerk ~f the Board ar~d Comrr~i~~ic~n, hay caused this
~ecor~~ Amended end Restafi~d N1G~l~ tea be executed on its ~~~aff by its d~l~ ~u~hc~rized
officer.

~~~JNTY t~~ l~t~ AN~a~L~S
BOARD CAF S~PEi~VISC~RS

~.C}~ J~'~,N~~LE 1~I~M~tRIA~L
Ct~LISEUM ~C~li~~~~~C)~

C~[ia ~aual~
Acting E~ec~~i~re Ufficer-~Ierk cif t~~ hoard

yM~11 Mx~~wwx~yY

~J

AF'PF~(~V'~C} ~~ T~ F~7Rl :
MARY C. VII~~~.HAM
Caunty Caun~~~

l

.~.
j ~►. ~.~

Curren D. Price, fir.
Pre~id~nt, ..as ~+;ngel~s ~em~ri~l
~~li~eur~ ~~m~iss~an

r

~C}MYtCTIIS~it~C"I

~~
~orrtmissi~n .ec~al ~c~uns~~



 

 

  

  

    

 

  

                LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
                        3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA  90037 

 
 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Regular Meeting 6/21/18  Page 1 of 1 
 

COMMISSION STAFF 
AL NAIPO 
INTERIM 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
SECRETARY 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 
STATE SENATOR 
RICARDO LARA 

ASSEMBLYMEMBER 
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

CURREN D. PRICE, JR. 
PRESIDENT 

 

SOLOMON RIVERA 
 

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON 
(Alternate) 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
MONA PASQUIL ROGERS 

 

LAPHONZA BUTLER 
 

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate) 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
JANICE HAHN 

 VICE PRESIDENT 
 

MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS 
 

ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate) 
 
 

 

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984 
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES 

 

AGENDA ITEM #10 
 

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

THOMAS SAYLES 
 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
RECEIVE and FILE the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum General Manager’s Report 
 
Overview: 
 
USC’s Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum General Manager’s Report was received by the 
Commission’s Interim Chief Administrative Officer from Senior Vice President, University Relations, 
Thomas Sayles. The report summarizes event operations and planned and in-progress projects 
(for the General Manager’s Report see Attachment 10.1). 
 
 
 



 

3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037 • Tel: 213 747 7111 • Fax: 213 764 9346 

University Coliseum Management Report 
June 21, 2018 

 
1. EVENT OPERATIONS 

 
A. Completed Coliseum Events   

i. CHLA Annual Walk and Play LA Event (June 2) 
ii. Party Royale E3 Event (June 12) 

 
B. In Progress/Upcoming, Large Events planned for 2018… 

i. Annual 4th of July Community Festival & Fireworks Show (July 4) 
ii. Dirty Bird BBQ (July 8) 

iii. LA Rams vs Raiders (Aug. 18) 
iv. LA Rams vs Texans (Aug. 25) 
v. USC Football vs UNLV (Sept. 1) 

vi. International Soccer Match: Argentina vs Guatemala (Sept. 7) 
vii. LA Rams vs Cardinals (Sept. 16) 

viii. USC Football vs Washington State (Sept. 21) 
ix. LA Rams vs Chargers (Sept. 23) 
x. LA Rams vs Vikings (Sept. 27) 

xi. USC Football vs Colorado (Oct. 13) 
xii. USC Football vs Arizona State (Oct. 27) 

xiii. LA Rams vs Packers (Oct. 28) 
xiv. USC Football vs California (November 10) 
xv. LA Rams vs Seattle (Nov. 11) 

xvi. USC Football vs Notre Dame (Nov. 24) 
xvii. LA Rams vs Eagles (Dec. 16) 

xviii. LA Rams vs 49ers (Dec. 30) 
 

2. COLISEUM PROJECTS 
 

A. Projects Requiring Coliseum Commission Approval (Those that materially affect the exterior 
structure or appearance of the Coliseum or Coliseum Property, or the historical significance 
of the Coliseum…or, are structural in nature…) 
 

i. Coliseum Renovation Project, approved by the Commission July 28, 2016… 
 

a. Work commenced January 8, 2018 and shall continue for approximately 18 
months until July 2019. 
 

b. Stadium impacted areas shall be south side of stadium from section 4 to 
section 10, the south street level between Gates 4 and 11, and the Coliseum 
field.  The building will have limited operations during the construction 
period. 

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text
Attachment 10.1



 
c. The temporary press box for the 2018 football season has been installed. 

 
d. The field area will be cleared of equipment and debris by July, and the 

surface returned to grass in preparation for the 2018 football season.  
 

e. During the 2018 football season, construction work will occur during a 
game week Monday-Thursday, paused for the facility to host the weekend 
game, then resumed the following Monday. 
 

f. While the construction will have a large impact on the stadium for 18 
months, the stadium will still be able to host events on a limited scale, 
including the Coliseum Commission’s eight designated Public Interest 
Events.  The requirements for each event will be evaluated before final 
approval can be given; for example, if the set up and areas of use for the 
Memorial Day event and the 4th of July Community Festival & Fireworks 
Show remain the same as in 2017, these events will be able to take place. 

 
g. Local residents may call a community hotline number (213 798-4828) to 

express concerns or questions. 
 

h. Monthly Update – please see attached Exhibit A. 
 

B. Site Upgrades and Improvements 
 

i. South Office and Boardroom Project. 
 

a. Project scope is a refresh of the South Lobby, Offices and Boardroom, as 
well as the North Building 1st Floor incorporating new floor/carpeting 
treatments, fresh wall paint, restored mural and woodwork among other 
details. 
 

b. Project commenced April 2018; targeted completion July, 2018.  Work 
completed to date includes: 

1. Demo/Abatement: 4/30-5/3 
2. Door Relocation/Framing: 5/4-5/9 
3. Fresco Restoration: 5/15-5/18 
4. Clock Repair/Restoration: 5/22 

 
Please see Exhibit B for pictures of the work completed to date. 

 
c. Remaining Project milestones: 

1. Painting: 5/23-5/30 
2. T-Bar Ceiling Painted: 5/31 
3. Lobby Lighting Install: 6/1-6/4 
4. Existing Cabinetry Refinishing: 6/5- 6/7 
5. New Cabinetry Installation: 6/11-6/15 
6. Window Treatments: 6/11-6/15 



7. AV Installation: 6/13-6/20 
8. Flooring Installation: 6/21-6/27 
9. Final Furniture: 6/27-7/29 

 
C. Infrastructure and Maintenance Projects...  

 
i. Nothing to report 

 
Note: A complete, itemized list of capital improvement items and associated costs for the fiscal will be 
provided with the University/Coliseum Semi-Annual Report. 
 
 

3. OTHER ITEMS 
 

A. Nothing further to report. 

 
END OF REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 



LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM
COMMISSION UPDATE | JUNE 21, 2018

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text
Attachment 10.2

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text



PROJECT COMPLETION TARGET: AUGUST 2019

The project remains on target to 
be completed by the start of the 
August 2019 home football 
season. 
Current onsite activities include:
• Structural Steel & Metal 

Deck
• Lower Bowl Seating Slabs
• Temporary Press Boxes



CURRENT PROGRESS OF WORK

 Structural steel and metal deck.
 Lower bowl seating slabs.
 Removal of materials and equipment from field.
 Sub-surface utilities.
 Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing systems rough-in.
 Seating rail installation.



TARGETED WORK



LABOR AND SUBCONTRACTOR UPDATE

Local Work Hire:
 173 Craft Workers On-Site
 10 Local Apprentices were sponsored into local unions and added to the project
 On track to exceed local hire goals

8 Subcontractors Currently Working On-Site:
 Calex Enginering
 Conco Concrete
 Cosco Fire Protection
 Letner
 Martinez Steel (MBE/SBE)
 Murray
 Rosendin Electric
 S.M.E. Steel





LOCAL LABOR STATUS

Local Workers within 5-mile radius:
 173 local workers (30% of work force)

City of Los Angeles:
 31% of work force

County of Los Angeles:
 393 workers (59.44% of work force)

Disadvantaged Local Workers:
 36 workers (8% of local manpower hours)



DIVERSE BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION

GGG Demolition (WBE)
 Demolition and Abatement scopes of work
 $3 million and $240,000, respectively

Martinez Steel (MBE/SBE)
 Rebar/Reinforcing Steel
 $4.5 million

Setting up B2G Now to track and report 
business enterprise utilization



COMMUNITY OUTREACH EVENTS





ENGAGED WITH COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATIONS

 National Association of Minority 
Contractors in LA

 Latin Business Association
 LA Latino Chamber of Commerce
 National Association of Women Business 

Owners
 Veteran Business Alliance
 Women Business Enterprise Council West
 Southern CA Minority Supplier Diversity 

Council
 Transportation Business Advisory Council

 Minority Business Development Agency – LA
 LA County Dept. of Business Affairs
 Supervisor Mark Ridley-Thomas Office
 Councilman Curren Price’s Office
 City of LA Business Assistance Virtual 

Network
 Goldman Sach’s 10,000 Small Businesses
 USC Small Business Diversity Office
 SBA
 and many others.



LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM
COMMISSION UPDATE | JUNE 21, 2018



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 



 

 

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text
Attachment 10.3



 

 

  

  

    

 

  

                LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
                        3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA  90037 

 
 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Regular Meeting 6/21/18  Page 1 of 1 
 

COMMISSION STAFF 
AL NAIPO 
INTERIM 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
SECRETARY 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 
STATE SENATOR 
RICARDO LARA 

ASSEMBLYMEMBER 
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

CURREN D. PRICE, JR. 
PRESIDENT 

 

SOLOMON RIVERA 
 

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON 
(Alternate) 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
MONA PASQUIL ROGERS 

 

LAPHONZA BUTLER 
 

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate) 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
JANICE HAHN 

 VICE PRESIDENT 
 

MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS 
 

ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate) 
 

 

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984 
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES 

 

AGENDA ITEM #11 
 

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM STADIUM SEAT PROMOTION 
 

AL NAIPO 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: Discussion and possible action 
 
Overview:  
 
Coliseum tenant USC presented a plan at the Commission meeting on May 24th to provide 
Coliseum stadium seats to donors, season ticket holders and the public in light of its approved plan 
to replace all of the Coliseum stadium seats by August 2019.  
 
During that presentation, USC Sr. VP of University Relations Tom Sayles offered to provide to the 
Commission some of the seats refurbished for display purposes along with making a monetary 
donation to the Commission’s non-profit entity based on the sales of those seats, which could 
number up to 10,000 or so. 
 
Staff has further reviewed the proposal and recommends Commission approval for USC to 
proceed with its plan for those Coliseum assets as set forth in materials provided and as presented 
to the Commission.  



Proposed Historic Coliseum Seat Program 

Here is a summary of the Coliseum Historic Seat program USC is considering: 

Following the conclusion of the 2018 football season, approximately 70,000 seats in the Coliseum are 
scheduled to be removed and replaced with brand new seats as part of the renovation project.  While 
almost all of these seats are in less-than-desirable condition (almost all were installed in the 1960s), 
USC recognizes there may be a fan base that would like the old seats as a souvenir. USC would 
address this as follows: 

1. The USC Athletic Department would like to provide to their season ticket holders and donors 
(those who are underwriting the $270M renovation project) with two complimentary seats in 
recognition of their support.  An outreach program to the 15,000 account holders would be 
conducted, giving the supporters the option of receiving two seats if they confirm by August 1. 

2. After August 1 and lasting through the 2018 football season, a marketing program for fans to 
purchase seats would be conducted with a partner company GA Global…the same company 
that handled the auction of the Sports Arena items (unlike the arena, this is not a one-time 
auction of the Coliseum seats, it is purchase at a set price with orders taken August-Dec 2018).  

o Three tiers of seats would be offered at the following prices to the general public:  

 As-is…a pair of seats that come ‘straight from the stadium’; customer would be 
responsible for the mounting/display.  Suggested price $299.00/set of 2. 

 Mounted…a pair of seats mounted on a base for the customer.  Suggested 
price $399.00/set of 2. 

 Restored...a pair of seats cleaned, metal arms repainted and mounted on a 
base for the customer.  Suggested price $699.00/set of 2. 

3. After the last Rams 2018 season home game, the old seats will be removed (approximately 
January-February 2019) and the pre-orders will be fulfilled.  While it just an estimate, between 
the Athletic accounts and potential sales, USC believes the total number of seats needed 
would be approximately 20,000.  If additional needs are identified (outside of this program) 
there would still be plenty of seats available to fulfill demand. 

4. Proceeds from the sale of the seats would go into the Coliseum operating budget and utilized 
for stadium repairs and upgrades, as well as reflected in the cumulative calculated amount 
reported to the Commission in the annual report. 

5. USC Senior VP of University Relations, Tom Sayles also indicated at the Commission’s May 24, 
2018 regular meeting that USC would provide to the Commission, some of the restored 
stadium seats referenced above for display. In addition, USC would make a monetary 
donation TBD to the Commission’s non-profit organization based on sales from the seats.  

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text
Attachment 11.1



 

 

  

  

    

 

  

                LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
                        3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA  90037 

 
 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Regular Meeting 6/21/18   
 

COMMISSION STAFF 
AL NAIPO 
INTERIM 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
SECRETARY 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 
STATE SENATOR 
RICARDO LARA 

ASSEMBLYMEMBER 
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

CURREN D. PRICE, JR. 
PRESIDENT 

 

SOLOMON RIVERA 
 

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON 
(Alternate) 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
MONA PASQUIL ROGERS 

 

LAPHONZA BUTLER 
 

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate) 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
JANICE HAHN 

 VICE PRESIDENT 
 

MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS 
 

ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate) 
 

 

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984 
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES 

 

AGENDA ITEM #12 
 

UPDATE ON CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS IN EXPOSITION PARK 
 

ANA LASSO 
 

  
Staff Recommendation: 
 
RECEIVE and FILE the update on Exposition Park construction projects (see Attachment 12.1), presented 
by Ana Lasso, General Manager of the Office of Exposition Park Management. 
 

 



D
O

W
N

TO
W

N
 L

.A
. 1

.6
 M

I

LO
N

G
 B

EA
C

H
 2

0.
9 

M
I

ANAHEIM 32.5 MI

EXISTING CONDITIONS

SANTA MONICA 12.8 MI

Exposition 
Park

April 04, 2018

Eflores
Typewritten Text
Attachment 12.1

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text



1

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

N
SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Base Map



2

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

DIAGRAM KEY

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Public Transportation

N

PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION

EXPOSITION LINE

This diagram illustrates the many forms of public 
transportation that can be used to get to the park 
as well as the pedestrian circulation routes within 
the park that are available once you have arrived.

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Exposition Blvd.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

102 Bus Line and Stations

40 Bus Line and Stations

204 Bus Line and Stations

81 Bus Line and Stations

Exposition Metro Line 
and Stations

Pedestrian Circulation Routes

754 Bus Line and Stations

550 Bus Line and Stations

200 Bus Line and Stations

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

442 Bus Line and Stations



3

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

DIAGRAM KEY

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Vehicular Routes

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

N
SCALE

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’

PRIMARY VEHICULAR

SECONDARY VEHICULAR

PARKING/LOADING ACCESS

PARKING LOT

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’

1. Primary Vehicular Street - Carry the heavier 
loads of traffic, facilitate through traffic 
and support public transportation.

2. Secondary Vehicular Street - Connect 
Primary streets with one another, are 
smaller in scale and therefore see less traffic

3. Parking and Loading Access - These are the 
small streets that provide a vital connection 
to final service and parking destinations.

Primary Vehicular Street

Secondary Vehicular Street

Parking & Loading Access

Parking Lot or 

P



4

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Vehicular Intersections

Existing Vehicular Intersection

1. Existing Vehicular Intersection - These 
intersections add to the overall connectivity 
and circulation of Expo Park and the 
surrounding areas.

2. Limited Access Vehicular Intersection - 
These intersections do not carry the same 
capacity as typical intersections and in some 
cases are more of an entry point to a garage 
or other service areas.

Existing Limited Access 
Vehicular Intersection

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St



5

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

DIAGRAM KEY

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’

2,131
SPACES

118
SPACES

2,131
SPACES

998
SPACES

235
SPACES

37
SPACES

217
SPACES

Existing Parking

SURFACE PARKING LOT

STRUCTURE PARKING LOT

UNDERGROUND PARKING LOT

PRIMARY VEHICULAR

SECONDARY VEHICULAR

PARKING/LOADING ACCESS

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’

N

Existing Surface Parking Lot

Existing Structure Parking Lot

Existing Underground Parking Lot

245

1,323
SPACES

975
SPACES



6

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

DIAGRAM KEY

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Vehicular Areas

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

N
SCALE

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’

PAVED FOR VEHICLES

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’

Existing Surfaces Paved for Vehicles

Surface Parking Area: 11.8% of Site
Paved for Vehicular Use: 19.6% of Site

- North Side: 13.6% paved for vehicular use
- South Side: 29.6% paved for vehicular use

NORTH SIDE

SOUTH SIDE



7

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Landscaped Area

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

N
SCALE

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’

LANDSCAPE AREA

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’

Landscape Area



8

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

DIAGRAM KEY

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Open Space Types

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

N

LAWN

DECOMPOSED GRANITE

PUBLIC GARDEN

SPORTS FIELD

LIMITED ACCESS GARDEN

SPECIAL STATUS VEGETATION

LANDMARK/HISTORICAL 
FEATURE

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’

Existing Lawn

Existing Decomposed Granite

Existing Public Garden

Existing Public Sports Field

Existing Limited Access Garden

Existing Special Status Vegetation

Existing Landmark/Historical Feature



9

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

DIAGRAM KEY

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

N

DECORATIVE FENCE

CHAIN-LINK FENCE

PICKET FENCE

SECURITY FENCE

Existing Decorative Fence

Existing Chain-Link Fence

Existing Picket Fence

Existing Security Fence

Existing Fence Types



10

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Street Lamps

DIAGRAM KEY

1

5

5

9

9

9

9

9

9

2 10

10

11

10
18

18

17

10
10

12

13

13

15

14

14

16

13

10

10

10

2

4

2
2

2

1

6666

7

7

7

8

8

8

8
8

8

88

8

8

8

8
8

8

7
6

3

1

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

N

1

7

2

8

3

9 10

4 5

11 12

181614 171513

6

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’

1

7

2

8

3

9 10

4 5

11 12

181614 171513

61

7

2

8

3

9 10

4 5

11 12

181614 171513

6

1

7

2

8

3

9 10

4 5

11 12

181614 171513

61

7

2

8

3

9 10

4 5

11 12

181614 171513

6

1

7

2

8

3

9 10

4 5

11 12

181614 171513

6



11

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Gateways and Thresholds

6

1. One of the most articulated entrances to 
Expo Park, the gateway through Jesse A. 
Brewer Jr. Park exhibits landscape and open 
space characteristics that set a standard for 
all park gateways. 

2. The entrance to Victory Walk has potential 
to be a monumental procession and linkage 
from the USC campus to Expo Park. 

3. Acting as the primary entrance to the Rose 
Garden, this gateway is one of the few 
moments that make the park feel like a 
complete experience. 

4. Passing right under the Douglas DC-8 this 
gateway is not as monumental as others 
in the park, however it offers a unique 
experience and could be something special 
if it was treated less like a back door/drop 
off zone.

5. Lucas Museum of Narrative Art spans the 
entrance to Exposition Park from the west, 
opposite 39th Street, quite literally forming 
a gateway to the park.

6. As the major vehicular access to the 
Exposition Park, this entry provides an iconic 
view of the Coliseum. 

7. This is the threshold between the USC 
campus and exposition park. Even though 
both entities are in close proximity, USC 
faces Inward on itself, Expo Park does not 
adequately address the threshold and 
the train tracks further divide two of Los 
Angeles most important institutions.

8. The western side of the Lucas Museum of 
Narrative Art has many pedestrian gateways 
that create a permeable threshold along 
Vermont Ave.

Existing Gateway

Existing Threshold

7 7

5

4

31 2

8

8

8

8



12

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing View Corridors

Existing View

There are several existing views in Expo Park that 
create special moments. Some of these views 
terminate on monumental building facades, 
some involve tremendous city skylines and others 
incorporate the parks unique landscape. All views 
help support a framework that enhances the 
overall park experience.



13

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Entrances to Buildings

Primary Building Entrance

Secondary Building Entrance

1. Primary Building Entrance - This is where 
the vast majority of park visitors enter 
each individual building. This might not 
be the most significant facade or the 
biggest doorway, but is where the typical 
pedestrian circulation occurs.

2. Secondary Building Entrance - These 
Building entrances are not loading decks 
or back-doors. They have a significant role 
in defining different spaces in the park, 
however they do not carry the highest 
capacity of pedestrian use.



14

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

DIAGRAM KEY

 Park Entry Fees

Striped areas are a combination of designations

Free Access - Building

Free Access - Open Space

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

N

6 Pay To Access - Building

Pay to Access - Open Space or
  Parking

Not Open To Public - Building

Not Open to Public - Open Space

?
? To Be Determined

SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’



15

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Dry Utilities

Existing Electrical Line

Existing Gas Line

Existing Telecom Line

Future Utility Easement

Existing Utility Easement

Future Electrical Easement
Existing Electrical Easement

Future Telecom Easement
Existing Telecom Easement

Future Gas Easement

Existing Gas Easement



16

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Wet Utilities

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

Existing Water Line

Existing Sanitary Sewer Line

Existing Storm Drain Line

Future Storm Easement

Existing Storm Easement

Future Sewer Easement
Existing Sewer Easement
Future Water Easement

Existing Water Easement



17

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Park Edge Condition

Above Average Park Edge

Average Park Edge

Below Average Park Edge

1. Above Average Park Edge - Defined 
by ample landscaping that makes the 
pedestrian experience enjoyable as well 
as comfortable. The proper dimension 
required to accommodate a wide variety 
of activities including walking, running 
and biking. Park furniture/features such as 
benches, art installations or public transit 
stations are provided.

2. Average Park Edge - This type of condition 
has the fundamental structure to be 
a desirable space, but clearly lacks the 
cohesive effort to achieve it. Landscape is 
not fully developed, pedestrian circulation 
space is inadequate and there are little to 
no extra park features.

3. Below Average Park Edge - This is a 
completely undesirable area to be in and 
more often than not you will find this type 
of space unoccupied because of its harsh 
condition. It is disconnected from the park, 
has a nonexistent landscape and in some 
instances does not provide any space for a 
pedestrian to inhabit at all.



18

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

N
SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Physical Conditions

1

1

1. Bill Robertson Lane a public street under 
the control of LA-DOT, is configured for 
vehicle traffic and is not welcoming to 
pedestrians.  While it provides a reservoir 
of space for school bus parking and access 
to parking garages, and service vehicles,  
it lacks adequate landscaping and proper 
right of way dimensions to render it a 
pedestrian-friendly street.

2. The peripheral service buildings 
surrounding the Coliseum are disorganized, 
create an aesthetic eyesore and create an 
impenetrable visual and physical barrier

3. The South Lawn is comprised of water-
hungry turf (with some parts bare) atop 
compacted soil, and  the result of tail-
gating, and service vehicles driving across 
the space

4. Several trees lining this portion of 
Exposition Park are dead, missing, or 
inadequately maintained.

5. As S Hoover St. enters the park, it lacks 
landscaping and is an undesirable street 
to traverse. It is an inadequate southern 
gateway to the park

6. These parking lots are vast, difficult 
to navigate, and have an absence of 
landscape. They something of a no-mans 
land.

7. The trees on Christmas Tree Lane are 
inadequately maintained (some are dead). 
The open space is underutilized due to its 
harsh ground cover and perimeter of wide 
roads and  tunneling garage entrances.

8. The brick wall surrounding the Rose Garden 
is in disrepair.

9. Lighting along this pedestrian path, which 
serves as a primary route to the Expo 
Station, is inadequate.  Frequent users of 
this path (e.g., staff) report feeling unsafe 
after dark in this area.

10. Under-utilized structures.

Note: An absence of public restrooms throught 
the park

3

2

2

4

5 66

7

7

8

9

10



19

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 200’ 400’ 800’
Existing Public Space Usage

Least occupied public spaces

Most occupied public spaces



20

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

DIAGRAM KEY

Frequency of Events

Natural History Museum

California Science Center

Office of Exposition Park Management 
/Rose Garden/ Parking Lots

California African American Museum

Banc of California Stadium

LA Memorial Coliseum/ USC

Expo Center
N

um
be

r 
of

 E
ve

nt
s 

pe
r 

M
on

th

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec.

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

*This graph represents an estimated number of 
events from 2017. The data for Banc of California 
Stadium represents 2018 events as there were no 
events in 2017.

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec.

N
um

be
r o

f E
ve

nt
s 

pe
r M

on
th

Chart Title

Natural History Museum

California Science Center

Office of Exposition Park Management/Rose Garden/Parking
Lots/Christmas Tree Lane

California African American Museum

Banc of California Stadium

LA Memorial Coliseum/USC

Expo Center



1

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Greater Context Diagram

N

Not to Scale

MacArthur
Park

Grand
Park

L.A. Live

M
yF

ig
 C

or
ri

do
r

10

10
Lo

s A
n

g
eles R

iver

Exposition Park

Pershing
Square

Notes:

1. Take advantage of the proximity to downtown 
Los Angeles

2. Two Metro Rail train stations and multiple 
bus stations around the park help overall 
connectivity

3. Significant investment going into surrounding 
neighborhoods

4. Enhanced bicycle connections resulting from 
the MyFig project

5. Close proximity to USC
6. Notable absence of park/open space in the 

greater area

University of
Southern California

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text
																													Attachment 12.2

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text
Attachment 12.2

Eflores
Typewritten Text



2

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’
Gateway Diagram

Notes:

1. Both existing and new gateways have an 
opportunity for improvement

2. New front door to Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. 
3. Use the addition of the Lucas Museum of 

Narrative art to create a new gateway to the 
park

4. Equal distribution of gateways around the 
park in order to not create the backdoor/back 
edge condition

5. Create unique gateways that signify the 
entrance to the park

Gateway - Existing

Gateway - New

Gateway - Enhanced



3

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’
Pedestrian Circulation Diagram

Notes:

1. There is an opportunity to connect each 
gateway with a larger network of pedestrian 
circulation routes

2. Vacating Bill Robertson Lane from LA DOT 
street to park driveway

3. Continue Pedestrian Promenade (shared 
street) into South Park Drive to LAFC and 
connect to north to create continuous 
pedestrian loop

4. Work with LMNA to create a more pedestrian 
friendly Leighton ave.

5. Use existing, historic buildings and new 
buildings to frame pedestrian corridors

6. Create an efficient pedestrian circulation 
network that allows park visitors pleasant 
options to get from one park entity to another

7. Connect circulation routes within the park 
to circulation routes in the surrounding 
community

Pedestrian Circulation



4

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’
Park Edge Diagram

Notes:

1. Connect the park edge with the surrounding 
community.

2. Wide shaded Promenade for strolling along 
some or all of the park perimeter

3. Parts of the park edge only need minor 
enhancements while other parts are non 
existent

4. Incorporate park furniture such as benches, 
lighting and other park amenities

5. Incorporate public transit infrastructure such 
as bike share, bus station, and metro ticketing 
kiosks

6. Create an edge to the park that does not act 
like an impenetrable boundary but more of a 
link, sewing together the connection between 
the community, USC and the park

Edge Condition

Connection with Community



5

April 04, 2018 ©2018  Torti Gallas + Partners | 601 West 5th Street, Suite 600  |  Los Angeles, California 90071 | 213.607.0070

Exposition Blvd.

Fi
g

u
er

o
a 

St

V
er

m
o

n
t 

A
ve

.

Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

DIAGRAM KEY

N
SCALE

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’
Open Space Diagram

Notes:

1. Increase open space and overall parking by 
under-grounding parking in Lots 4,5 and 6

2. Replace tailgating on South Lawn with game 
day picnicking without cars

3. Replace high-water/high-maintenance plants 
with drought tolerant plants or DG

4. Increase amount of mature shade trees
5. Demonstration of Sustainable practices

•	Store storm-water/run-off and reuse
•	Connect irrigation to LA’s ‘purple pipe – which 

should arrive by 2022
•	Photo-voltaics above parking
•	Permeable paving
•	Drought tolerant landscape
•	On-site composting and recycling of organic 

waste
•	New site furniture and lighting to be locally 

sourced, recycled materials 
•	Re-plant rose garden with varieties that are more 

ecologically appropriate
6. More spaces for local use (small soccer fields 

or Futsol near LAFC); sitting, dog walking, 
“traffic garden” (kid’s tricycle layout), 
picnicking, fitness trails, carousel, etc.

7. Enhance/repair wall around Rose Garden
8. Lucas will have 400-seat outdoor 

amphitheater, plus gathering spaces for events

Enhancement to 
Existing Green Space

New Green Space

New Hardscape Open Space

Open Space 
Perimeter Enhancement

Existing Green Space

Existing Hardscape open Space



 

 

  

  

    

 

  

                LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
                        3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA  90037 

 
 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Regular Meeting 6/21/18   
 

COMMISSION STAFF 
AL NAIPO 
INTERIM 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
SECRETARY 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 
STATE SENATOR 
RICARDO LARA 

ASSEMBLYMEMBER 
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

CURREN D. PRICE, JR. 
PRESIDENT 

 

SOLOMON RIVERA 
 

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON 
(Alternate) 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
MONA PASQUIL ROGERS 

 

LAPHONZA BUTLER 
 

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate) 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
JANICE HAHN 

 VICE PRESIDENT 
 

MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS 
 

ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate) 
 

 

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984 
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES 

 

AGENDA ITEM #13 
 

UPDATE ON LOS ANGELES FOOTBALL CLUB PROJECT 
 

BENNY TRAN 
 
 

Staff Recommendation:  
 
RECEIVE and FILE the Los Angeles Football Club report. 
 
The Los Angeles Football Club report on Banc of California Stadium and on its local worker hire program 
(see Attachment 13.1) presented by LAFC Sr. VP Benny Tran. 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 18, 2018 
 
Al Naipo 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer and Secretary 
Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum  
500 W. Temple Street, Rm. 383 
Los Angeles, CA  90012 
 
Re:  Los Angeles Football Club MBE/WBE and Local Hire Quarterly Update 
 
Dear Mr. Naipo,  
 
The Los Angeles Football Club (“LAFC”) is pleased to provide a quarterly status report on the activities 
related to increasing the MBE/WBE/SBE/DVE opportunities and solicitation of Local Hire in 
conjunction with the construction of the Los Angeles Football Club’s Stadium and Ancillary Facility.  
For the period ending May 31, 2018, LAFC has achieved a 37.8% MBE/DBE/WSB/WBE/DVE contract 
award goal and a 39.16% local hire percentage for the project to date.  Approximately $86.5 million 
of the project needs have been bought out thus far, and there are 3,091 construction workers on site.   
 
With regards to workers on the project, the 3,091workers on site resulting in approximately 1.15 
million hours worked, equating to almost $70 million in wages and benefits. In addition, out of this 
total number, 2,249 were journeyman, 120 were foremen, and 827 were apprentices. 
 
In regards to supplier diversity, the awarded contracts to date of $228,686,590 million have resulted 
in $86,533,748 million of awards to MBE/WBE/SBE/DVE in the following areas: 
 

• Surveying 
• Final Cleaning 
• Tower Crane 
• Site Security 
• Abatement and 

Demolition 
• Earthwork and 

Shoring 
• Fences & Gates 
• Site Wood Decking 
• Site Utilities 
• Asphalt Paving 
• Site Concrete 
• CIP Concrete 

• Precast Concrete 
• Masonry 
• Ancillary Steel & 

Misc. Metals 
• Metal Stairs 
• Railings 
• Millwork & 

Countertops 
• Waterproofing 
• Insulation & Safing 
• Doors Frames & 

Hardware 
• Bi-Fold Doors 
• Glass & Glazing 

• Operable Glass 
Walls 

• Plaster & Drywall 
• Tile & Stone 
• Painting 
• Signage 
• Loading Dock 

Accessories 
• Hydrotherapy Tubs 
• Fire Protection 
• Plumbing & HVAC 
• Electrical 
• Audio Visual 

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text

Eflores
Typewritten Text
Attachment 13.1



 

 
 

4751 WILSHIRE BLVD. STE. 333 LOS ANGELES, CA 90010 | P. (323) 648-600 | F. (323) 648-6099 
 

Overall, LAFC/PCL is pleased to report that we are exceeding the 35% minimum goal for 
MBE/WBE/SBE/DVE vendor inclusion The stadium development is almost complete with outstanding 
change orders that are on-going.  The Ancillary facility construction is near completion with a the 
team store in operation while the food hall, called The Fields LA, is planned to open in July or August.  
This will also result in continued inclusivity with regard to the diversity goals.   
 

Sincerely,  

 

BENNY TRAN 

Senior Vice President 

Los Angeles Football Club 

 
 



 

 

  

  

    

 

  

                LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
                        3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA  90037 

 
 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Regular Meeting 6/21/18  
 

COMMISSION STAFF 
AL NAIPO 
INTERIM 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
SECRETARY 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 
STATE SENATOR 
RICARDO LARA 

ASSEMBLYMEMBER 
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

CURREN D. PRICE, JR. 
PRESIDENT 

 

SOLOMON RIVERA 
 

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON 
(Alternate) 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
MONA PASQUIL ROGERS 

 

LAPHONZA BUTLER 
 

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate) 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
JANICE HAHN 

 VICE PRESIDENT 
 

MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS 
 

ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate) 
 

 

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984 
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES 

 

AGENDA ITEM  #14 
 

CONSIDERATION FOR CREATING L.A. MEMORIAL COLISEUM FOUNDATION 
 

AL NAIPO 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: Discussion and possible action 
 
Overview:  
 
The Commission previously indicated its intent to replace the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum 
Association (Association) with a new similar non-profit organization in wake of the change of the 
operational control of the Coliseum upon approving a lease with tenant USC. 
 
The Commission requested that staff explore various options and report those findings. 
Commissioners have been provided with a brief proposal detailing those options in order to create 
the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Foundation (Foundation)(see Attachment 14.1). 
 
Commissioners were previously provided with a digital copy of the current Association Articles of 
Incorporation, Bylaws and tax exempt status information. That information can also be obtained on 
the Commission website, http://lamcc.lacounty.gov/. 
 
Staff recommends that the Commission direct staff to proceed accordingly with researching the 
creation of a Foundation and present to the Commission a detailed proposal no later than October 
25, 2018 for consideration and possible approval by the Commission.  



i 
 

PROPOSAL 

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM FOUNDATION 

___________________________________ 

 

PREPARED FOR: 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 

 

PREPARED BY: 

Al Naipo 

Interim Chief Administrative Officer and Secretary 

 

 

June 2018 

Eflores
Typewritten Text
Attachment 14.1



 
Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission             Proposal for the Establishment of Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Foundation 

June 2018 

 
Page i 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Table of Contents 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Page 

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1 

II. PRE-FORMATION PLANNING 1 

A. MISSION 1 

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2 

C. BYLAWS 2 

III. FORMAL INCORPORATION 2 

A. NAME OF THE FOUNDATION 2 

B. LEGAL FORM 2 

C. ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 2 

D. BYLAWS 3 

IV. OBTAINING TAX-EXEMPT STATUS FROM THE IRS 3 

 

  



 
Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission             Proposal for the Establishment of Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Foundation 

June 2018 

 
Page 1 

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission is rich with history and tradition. 
Since the days of the Honorable David Gibson, the Commission’s members have 
included many of the area’s most prominent public servants. 

Over the decades, the Commission’s efforts have produced many historical happenings 
and meaningful memorabilia. This historic heritage not only must be preserved for 
generations to come, but also promoted. 

There are three (3) general stages in forming a foundation: 

• Preformation planning 
• Formal incorporation 

• Obtaining tax-exempt status from the IRS 

This comprehensive proposal includes recommendations for all three (3) stages for the 
Commission’s consideration. 

II. PRE-FORMATION PLANNING 

A. MISSION 

Why are we forming this organization? 

Before filing any documents with the government, the Commission must first establish 
the mission and purpose of the new organization, as well as form a board of directors. 
The mission of the nonprofit should reflect its charitable purpose; it will also guide all of 
the organization’s activities. Next, form a board of directors to manage and guide the 
direction of the nonprofit. The State of California only requires the board to have one 
member, but ideally, you will have three or more members. Once the nonprofit is 
formed, the board should draft bylaws that address such matters as how new members 
may be added or removed from the board, the number of members needed to vote on a 
particular topic, and other rules for management. 

Who will do the work? 

Who will donate the foundation start-up capital? 

How will the foundation sustain itself? 

Who will serve on the board of directors and who will be the officers? 

 



Page 2 
 

Degree of control over the funds? 

What are the tax consequences? 

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

C. BYLAWS 

III. FORMAL INCORPORATION 

A. NAME OF THE FOUNDATION 

The name of the foundation shall be Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Foundation 
(Foundation). This name is the most preferable way to clearly connect the Foundation to 
the Coliseum. 

A preliminary search on the California Secretary of State website revealed that the 
aforementioned name is available. A formal inquiry letter was sent to the Secretary of 
State to check on availability. The Commission may also move forward to reserve the 
name utilizing a Name Registration Form to be filed with the California Secretary of 
State to reserve the name until other paperwork is filed. There is no filing fee for this 
form. 

B. LEGAL FORM 

Should we set up our foundation as a trust or a corporation? The corporate approach is 
more formal, requiring articles of incorporation, bylaws, regular meetings, minutes, state 
filings, and other reporting requirements. The Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum 
Association (Association) was established in this fashion. 

C. ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 

To register the Foundation in the State of California, articles of incorporation must be 
filed with the Secretary of State. On the form, we must indicate whether our organization 
is a religious corporation, a public benefit corporation that will pursue 501(c)(3) filing, or 
a mutual benefit corporation that will file for 501(c)(4) status. The Association was set 
up as a 501(c)(3). To comply with IRS regulations, the articles of incorporation must 
include provisions stating that the Foundation is organized for an exempt purpose, the 
foundation will not engage in political activities or propaganda, profits will not be 
distributed to members beyond reasonable compensation, and that if the foundation is 
dissolved, it will distribute its assets to another nonprofit organization or government 
agency. When the California Secretary of State approves your filed articles of 
incorporation, the Foundation becomes a legal entity. 



Page 3 
 

D. BYLAWS 

IV. OBTAINING TAX-EXEMPT STATUS FROM THE IRS 

Once the organization is formed under California law, the next step is to seek 
recognition from the IRS as a tax-exempt charity. Such recognition means that the 
organization will not have to pay federal tax on its income and the organization will be 
eligible to receive tax-deductible contributions. This process involves submitting IRS 
Form 1023, “Application for Recognition of Exemption Under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code.” Once the IRS receives the Form 1023, it will determine: (1) 
whether the organization should be a Section 501(c)(3) organization, (2) whether it 
considers the organization to be a private foundation or public charity, and (3) if it 
qualifies as a public charity, what legal form of public charity the organization will be. 



 

 

  

  

    

 

  

                LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
                        3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA  90037 

 
 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Regular Meeting 6/21/18   
 

COMMISSION STAFF 
AL NAIPO 
INTERIM 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
SECRETARY 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 
STATE SENATOR 
RICARDO LARA 

ASSEMBLYMEMBER 
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

CURREN D. PRICE, JR. 
PRESIDENT 

 

SOLOMON RIVERA 
 

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON 
(Alternate) 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
MONA PASQUIL ROGERS 

 

LAPHONZA BUTLER 
 

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate) 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
JANICE HAHN 

 VICE PRESIDENT 
 

MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS 
 

ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate) 
 

 

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984 
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES 

 

AGENDA ITEM #15 
 

 AD HOC LEASE REVIEW COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

COMMISSIONER HAHN 
 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
RECEIVE and FILE the Ad Hoc Lease Review Committee report. 
 
The Ad Hoc Lease Review Committee of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission, which 
was created during the Commission’s meeting on April 26, 2018, convened for the second time on 
Wednesday, June 13th.  
 
Commissioners Hahn, Rivera and Pasquil Rogers were appointed to serve on the committee with 
Commissioner Hahn serving as Chair. 
  


	Attachment 08.1  - Draft Budget 2018-2019 (AN).pdf
	Recommended FY2017-18 Budget

	Attachment 10.1 - GM Report June 2018.v3.pdf
	LAMC GM Report June 2018.v2
	EXHIBIT A COVER PAGE
	Exhibit A. June
	EXHIBIT B COVER PAGE
	Exhibit B. June

	Attachment 14.1 - LAMC Foundation Proposal.pdf
	I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	II. PRE-FORMATION PLANNING
	A. MISSION
	B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	C. BYLAWS

	III. FORMAL INCORPORATION
	A. NAME OF THE FOUNDATION
	B. LEGAL FORM
	C. ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
	D. BYLAWS

	IV. OBTAINING TAX-EXEMPT STATUS FROM THE IRS


